

EQUALITY SCHEME

2010 TO 2013

Published: July 2010

Contents

Contents	2
Foreword	4
Section 1 – Introduction to our Equality Scheme	e 5
Our equality priorities	5
Promoting equality in our service delivery	
Promoting equality in our working practices Promoting equality in employment	6
Section 2 – About the Council	8
Management team	8
Our statutory duties	
Section 3 – How we developed our Equality	
Scheme	10
Our approach to meeting the equality duties	10
Our evidence base	
Stakeholder involvement	10
Staff involvement	11
How we have used feedback from our engagement	4.4
with stakeholders and staff	
Section 4 – The Equality Scheme	
Equality in our service delivery	
Our customer service	
Our website	
We involve and consult	
We procure goods and services	
Equality in employment	
Our gender pay gap	
Flexible working patterns	
Supporting our staff with disabilities	
Workforce training	
Workforce disciplinary, grievance and promotion	15
Workplace culture	
Equality Impact Assessments (EqIAs) and monitoring	16

Section 5 – Our action plan	21
How to give us feedback	20
Publication of our 2010–13 Equality Scheme and progress rep	
Responsibility and accountability	20
Publication of our EqIA results, consultations and monitoring.	19
Evidence-based policy-making	19
Why gather information on Equality	17
Monitoring	17
Quality Assuring our EqIAs	17
Training our Staff	16

Foreword

This is our first Equality Scheme which we have published to reflect the new statutory requirements and expectations contained in the Equality Act 2010. This Equality Scheme now replaces our separate Equality Schemes for disability, gender and race which we published under previous legislation.

The Council has made significant progress in developing and implementing its equality aims and objectives in recent years and in September 2008 we successfully achieved level 4 on the former Equality Standard for Local Government.

The Equality Standard for Local Government has now been replaced by the Equality Framework for Local Government and the Council needs to sustain and build on the achievements to date whilst recognising the need to review and refresh its approach having regard to the new assessment framework and the new legislation.

In preparing our Equality Scheme we have built on the work undertaken to date and we have been equally ambitious in what we are setting out to achieve in the future. In doing so, we have actively consulted and listened to the views of many different individuals and organisations and our own staff.

I believe that this Equality Scheme ensures that we place equality right at the core of our organisation, our employment practices, our working practices and the services that we deliver to our community. I am also confident that it will have a real impact on how we do things and what we can achieve.

I would personally like to thank all those involved in helping us to shape our Equality Scheme and for your ongoing commitment and support.



David Marchant
Chief Executive – Castle Point Borough Council

Section 1 - Introduction to our Equality Scheme

As a public authority, the Council has legal requirements to ensure equality in the areas of age, disability, gender reassignment, marriage and civil partnership, pregnancy and maternity, race, religion or belief, sex and sexual orientation.

Our Equality Scheme sets out how we will aim to meet those legal requirements. We call this our single Equality Scheme.

This three year Equality Scheme describes how the Council will fulfil its moral, social and legal obligations to put equality at the heart of everything we do. Covering the period 1 April 2010 to 31 March 2013, this Equality Scheme is closely linked to our Corporate Plan and to our other strategies, policies and plans.

The Council views equality, human rights and good relations between people as something that affects us all, regardless of background, and we are committed to working closely with all those who are affected by, or interested in, our work. We see this as an ongoing process enabling individuals, organisations and staff to influence and shape the work we do.

In developing our three year Equality Scheme we have engaged with stakeholders through extensive involvement and consultation.

Our approach to developing this Equality Scheme has been based on the work we do rather than how we are structured as an organisation. We thought about what we wanted to achieve ('outcomes') and what we thought we needed to do to make them happen ('actions').

Our equality priorities

Through working in partnership with stakeholders and reviewing a range of evidence we have identified the following key priorities for our three year Equality Scheme. We will use our action plan to focus on these priorities and provide clear accountability for their delivery.

Promoting equality in our service delivery

- We will provide easy and convenient access to local services for all residents
- We will develop a robust and accessible communications strategy
- We will continue to improve the accessibility of our website
- We will use available information about our customers to ensure that we are prioritising key equality areas in our work
- We will monitor the effectiveness of our service provision to ensure that we reach all groups

Promoting equality in our working practices

- We will implement a robust involvement strategy to engage and respond to our stakeholders with a stronger emphasis on working with partners
- We will consult and involve representative networks covering all equality groups to help inform our future activities
- We will strengthen our equality procurement framework so that suppliers can demonstrate their commitment to equality and explore training for suppliers as necessary
- We will identify the equality profile of organisations who supply services for us and set targets to ensure they reflect the community we serve
- We shall ensure that we encourage supplier diversity during our procurement procedures

Promoting equality in employment

- We will maintain the diversity of our staff to reflect the community we serve across all the equality groups and we will continue to monitor our workforce profile
- We will provide pay gap monitoring information to include gender, race, disability, sexual orientation, age, and religion or belief
- We will develop a workplace environment where all our staff are treated with dignity and respect
- We will continue to improve accessibility in our working practices and to our buildings

We are also required to specify what our gender objectives are and they include:

- Conduct regular equal pay reviews
- Continue to promote awareness of our Domestic Abuse Policy and offer appropriate training
- Review our Harassment Policy to ensure dignity at work for all

Section 2 – About the Council

The Borough of Castle Point comprises the two urban areas of Canvey Island and the mainland towns of Benfleet, Hadleigh and Thundersley.

Each area has its own distinctively different landscape, built environment and social conditions which present a number of issues and opportunities.

The Borough faces a variety of challenges which reflect the diverse needs of the population. There is an ageing population which is expected to increase by a further 25% by 2013 and at the same time young people under 20 will continue to represent over 20% of the population.

The Borough has a diverse community. There are approximately 7,000 (19%) households where a person with a disability lives. There is a relatively small ethnic population and only 2.8% of the population were born outside the UK. However, these groups add to the diversity and culture and have distinct needs that should be addressed in order that positive relationships between communities can be enhanced.

Castle Point Borough Council needs to ensure that its services are fully accessible, tailored and targeted such that there is no social inequality and all residents are supported appropriately.

Management team

The Executive Management Team led by our Chief Executive, David Marchant, is responsible for setting the strategic direction of the Council.

The Executive Management Team, supported by the Corporate Management Team, is accountable to the elected Councillors for making sure that we achieve our business aims and for advising on emerging strategic priorities.

Our statutory duties

The Equality Act 2010 brings together all of the different equality strands and refers to them as "protected characteristics":

- Age
- Disability
- Gender reassignment
- Marriage and civil partnership
- Pregnancy and maternity
- Race
- · Religion or belief
- Sex
- Sexual orientation

The Council is a "public body" and has the following statutory duties as set out in the Equality Act 2010:

- Single (integrated) equality duty
 - Eliminate discrimination, harassment and victimisation or any other conduct prohibited by the Act
 - Advance equality of opportunity between persons who share a "protected characteristic" and those who do not
 - Foster good relations between people who share a "protected characteristic" and those who do not
- Socio-economic duty
 - Have due regard when making strategic decisions to the need to reduce inequalities of outcome which result from socio-economic disadvantage

Section 3 - How we developed our Equality Scheme

Our approach to meeting the equality duties

As a public authority, the Council has a legal requirement to promote equality in relation to age, disability, gender reassignment, marriage and civil partnership, pregnancy and maternity, race, religion or belief, sex and sexual orientation.

The Equality Act 2010 has strengthened protection, advanced equality and simplified the law. The new legislation has extended previous equality duties and, therefore, like other public bodies, the Council has elected to produce a single Equality Scheme which will cover all the equality strands.

Our evidence base

In developing our three year Equality Scheme we have gathered evidence from a number of sources to determine how we are delivering equality within our employment practices, our service delivery and our working practices.

We have also reflected on national data and specific research to inform our Equality Scheme and used benchmarks from other organisations to enable us to develop appropriate targets for improvement.

Stakeholder involvement

We have ensured that we listened to many different individuals, organisations and members of our staff in developing this three year Equality Scheme.

We carried out a consultation exercise which asked interested stakeholders to provide us with their views on our approach to the Equality Scheme. We also asked them to provide us with information on emerging challenges and priorities within their areas which we would need to consider to make sure that the Council embraced equality within all the services it provides.

Interested stakeholders were also invited to participate in a workshop event to assist in the development of this Equality Scheme.

Staff involvement

We asked staff to reflect on what they saw as the priorities for action for our three year Equality Scheme.

We worked with our staff and took into consideration comments received from our staff representatives through the work of our Equality and Diversity Group.

How we have used feedback from our engagement with stakeholders and staff

We listened to all of the responses we received and used these to inform the Equality Scheme and its action plan.

The key messages from our stakeholders were:

- You wanted us to develop a clear communications strategy reaching out to the most excluded groups within our society and utilising all forms of communication
- You wanted us to further enhance the accessibility of our website and helpline services
- You wanted us to tailor service delivery to meet differing needs
- You wanted us to ensure we did not favour any particular group or groups and to secure equal protection for all the equality groups as required by the Equality Act 2010

- You wanted us to ensure that all actions were balanced against needs and demands and financial and other resource implications
- You wanted us to ensure that our suppliers were as diverse as the communities we serve and that they could demonstrate a strong equality commitment to their workforce and service users

The key messages from our staff were:

- The culture and attitude within the organisation was important to you and you wanted to see us address this through specific training for all
- You wanted us to review and promote our flexible working options ensuring all staff had equitable access
- Improving the accessibility of our buildings was important and something you wanted a continued commitment to
- You wanted us to include equality issues within Personal Performance and Development Plans
- You wanted us to ensure that all services recognised where they could have an adverse impact on service users and take steps to prevent such situations

Section 4 - The Equality Scheme

Equality in our service delivery

The Council has a key role in helping individuals to access appropriate services and supporting them in that process where appropriate.

Our customer service

We offer our customers access to the services we provide through a number of channels as identified in our Customer First Strategy. The Council's Customer Charter helps us to ensure that services are accessible to all.

Our First Contact advisers are trained to deal with a variety of calls, relating to most of the Council's services and will do their best to ensure that enquiries are dealt with at the first point of contact.

Each service provides a detailed Service Plan and an associated Equality Impact Assessment (EqIA) for their service. The actions plans supporting these documents outline the work that is being done to improve the service we provide to our customers.

Our website

We are continually improving the facilities and information available through our website.

We involve and consult

This refers to how we involve people in our work. By involving we mean engaging with a wide variety of people and organisations in different ways and through different mechanisms. This is an ongoing process and is outlined in our Consultation Strategy.

We procure goods and services

By procurement we mean how we acquire goods, works and services. We believe that it is essential that people and organisations who provide goods, works and services on our behalf share our values.

When procuring goods, works and services, we will ensure that we encourage supplier diversity and get a better understanding of equality issues through the understanding of potential customer needs.

Equality in employment

We have a duty to make sure that those policies and practices that affect our staff are fair and promote equality of opportunity and outcome. Members of staff have rights in their capacity as employees.

We want to enable all our staff to be fully involved in the Council's work, to protect them from unfair treatment, to uphold our obligations to provide job profiles, appraisals and related performance and monitoring systems and to give them support, development opportunities and training.

Workforce diversity

The Council is committed to tackling all forms of discrimination whether it is direct, indirect, intentional or unintentional and to promoting equality of opportunity both as an employer and service provider.

Our gender pay gap

For 2009-10, the percentage of the top 5% of earners that were women was 55%. The Council conducts a regular equal pay review and this determines any pay differences and any issues arising from the review are addressed.

Flexible working patterns

Current national trends in data tell us the demand for flexible working patterns by both workers and employers will rise, placing a need for innovative approaches to achieving flexibility in the workplace.

Supporting our staff with disabilities

The Council is committed to creating a supportive and accessible working environment, based on mutual respect and trust, to enable all staff to carry out their roles. Reasonable adjustments are made where identified in consultation with our Occupational Health Service.

Workforce training

The Council is committed to offering learning and development opportunities to all staff. This will ensure that we become a more efficient and effective Council providing good value for money services.

Workforce disciplinary, grievance and promotion

The Council has a disciplinary and grievance process and is committed to ensuring that processes are fairly applied.

Workplace culture

The Council recognises that the culture of an organisation is intrinsically linked to treating people fairly, eliminating inequalities and promoting shared values.

We have an established set of values which are shared throughout the organisation and we continually work to develop the culture of the organisation by building trust, openness and integrity with respect for diversity and equality as a core value.

We work to ensure flexibility in working practices, develop communication processes, increase accessibility through the effective use of IT and to involve all staff in the continuous development of culture within the Council.

Equality Impact Assessments (EqIAs) and monitoring

Embedding equality into our policies, procedures and practices is essential to enable us to ensure we treat all people fairly.

We have therefore incorporated equality issues in the development of our policies and during our service planning process through EqIAs, developing actions plans to ensure we do not discriminate against a particular group(s) and that we promote equality in accordance with our statutory equality duties.

Training our staff

Through our internal training programme we provide mandatory equality training for all staff to ensure they understand their role and objectives under the equality duties and wider equality legislation. In addition, we also provide specific training on EqIAs.

Staff are trained to understand:

- What an EqIA is and why we undertake them
- The benefits of EqIAs
- How to use our EqIA tool
- The roles and responsibilities of staff with respect to EqIAs

We have developed an EqIA tool and guidance to help staff to carry out EqIAs in a systematic way.

We will continue to review our training provision as well as our overall EqIA process to ensure that it is fit for purpose and is updated to reflect feedback from staff and stakeholders.

Quality assuring our EqIAs

The Council's Equality and Diversity Group has overall responsibility for the scrutiny of our EqIAs. Heads of Service will be responsible for signing off EqIAs relevant to their function. The Equality and Diversity Group will continue to monitor the EqIAs and also the action plan included within this Equality Scheme and include quality assuring a sample of our EqIAs and monitoring and reviewing our overall process. Progress will be reported regularly to the Corporate Management Team.

Monitoring

We are committed to gathering and monitoring data to assess the impact of our policies on staff and stakeholders and individuals who we represent.

To meet our duties on gathering information and monitoring, we have to have suitable systems in place to collect relevant data that allows us to assess existing policies to see how they affect different groups. We can then identify whether any of our policies are having an adverse impact on a particular group or are missing an opportunity to promote equality, and see how we can review or amend the policy to remedy the situation.

Why gather information on equality?

In policy development equality monitoring can help us to understand:

- Whether the policy is likely to have the intended effect
- How proposed policies might affect particular groups

How we can amend policies to eliminate discrimination and promote equality

In service delivery, equality monitoring can help us to understand:

- The needs of service users
- Which groups are using our services
- Which groups are not using our services
- How to reach under-represented groups
- How satisfied different groups are with our services
- Differences in service outcomes
- How to use our resources better

In employment, equality monitoring can help us to:

- Measure the make-up of our workforce and compare it to national data
- Analyse personnel practices and procedures to see how they affect different groups of employees
- Understand the causes of any pay gap by group

We collect our employment data about recruitment, retention, promotion, development, impairment type, performance appraisal, grievances, disciplinary action, leavers, staff in post, training, part-time working and caring responsibilities.

We analyse this data to reflect the protected characteristics defined in the Equality Act 2010.

Evidence-based policy-making

As part of any effective policy development process, it is important to consider any potential risks to those who will be affected by the policy's aims or by its implementation and to consider only opportunities to actively promote equality that the policy presents.

The EqIAs helps us to consider any potential risk on different groups but it also offers an opportunity to consider how the policy may help to further develop equality, thereby ensuring that we have the best possible policy in place.

EqIAs are a major part of a wider approach to evidence-based policymaking, where the principles of monitoring, EqIAs and involvement lead to policies being developed that are user-focused and based on sound evidence.

Carrying out an EqIA at the start of the policy development process allows the policy holders to identify, at every step, what the consequences may be to different groups and whether a policy should adopt a certain direction, approach, criterion or eligibility requirement or whether there are any opportunities to promote equality.

This fosters ownership and a real understanding and commitment to 'get it right'. Most importantly it will lead to a focus on the user and, with the right involvement, it reduces the risk of creating policies that can lead to indirect and/or direct discrimination.

In this section, we use the term 'policy' as a shorthand term to cover policies, practices, functions, decisions and strategies.

Publication of our EqIA results, consultations and monitoring

We are committed to publishing the results of our EqIAs, consultations and monitoring on our website.

Responsibility and accountability

Our Chief Executive, David Marchant, has overall responsibility for making sure that we carry out the actions in this Equality Scheme. Actions have been allocated to the relevant Heads of Service across the Council and they are responsible for carrying these out and reporting on progress. We have identified responsible post holders for each target outcome in the action plan. Our Equality and Diversity Group will monitor progress.

Publication of our 2010–13 Equality Scheme and progress reports

The 2010–13 Equality Scheme is available on our website. The Equality Scheme will be reviewed annually. Progress reports will be published annually on our website shortly after the completion of each review process.

Our Equality Scheme and progress reports can be made available in another language or format (such as Braille, audio CD, data CD, "easy read" or large print). Please visit our website or contact us using the details below.

How to give us feedback

We welcome feedback on our Equality Scheme so that we can continue to improve. You can do this by contacting us using the information below:

Head of Customer Services
Castle Point Borough Council
Council Offices
Kiln Road
Benfleet
Essex SS7 1TF

Telephone: 01268 882200

Email: info@castlepoint.gov.uk

Section 5 - Our action plan

The actions set out in this plan relate to what we do as an organisation. We promote and enforce equality legislation on age, disability, gender reassignment, marriage and civil partnership, pregnancy and maternity, race, religion or belief, sex and sexual orientation.

These are our main functions:

- We provide statutory Council services
- We have a duty to consult citizens and encourage citizen participation in local decisions
- We continually develop and improve partnership working to the benefit of our citizens

To help us carry out our functions, we:

- Employ people
- Involve and consult people
- Procure goods, works and services
- Screen and impact assess how we work and how we provide services
- Publish and review our Equality Scheme

Single Equality Scheme – Action Plan

Community Engagement

Outcome	Action	Links to	Timescale	Lead
		Improvement		Responsibility
		Programme		
Greater Community	Actively involve the community in the decision	Access to Services:	March 2011	Wendy Livings
Engagement	making process.	Community		
		Engagement		
	Promote services and achievements in public	Reputation		
	places.	Management		
Use a wide range of	Actively consult with the community via different	Access to Services:	February 2011	Mel Harris
methods to engage	media channels and provide information on the			
and respond to our	actions taken as a result of the consultation.	Community		
stakeholders, whose		Engagement		
views we use to	Regularly review the representation on consultation			
review and improve	forums to ensure it is representative of the			
our service	community.			
provision.				
Communications	Review the Communications Policy to ensure that	Access to Services	September	Wendy Livings
Policy is reviewed to	information is delivered and available to all.		2010	
reflect the meeting of				
individual needs	Ensure all service areas share known best practice.			

Equality in employment

Outcome	Action	Links to Improvement Programme	Timescale	Lead Responsibility
Maintain our current workforce diversity reflecting the community we serve across all the equality areas.	Review workforce development plan for equality issues. Monitor equality impact assessment for workforce diversity.	Flexible Working/Staff culture – Workforce Development Plan	March 2011	Corinne Birch
Flexible working patterns are available to all staff regardless of equality profile, promoting innovative working practices.	Promote and develop flexible working options. Monitor uptake of flexible working options by equality profile and measure progress annually.	Flexible Working/Staff culture – Workforce Development Plan	March 2011	Corinne Birch
Monitor and address any unjustified pay gaps in relation to gender, disability and race.	Extend pay gap monitoring to cover race, disability, age, sexual orientation, religion or belief and gender reassignment.	Flexible Working/Staff culture – Workforce Development Plan	March 2011	Corinne Birch

Outcome	Action	Links to Improvement	Timescale	Lead Responsibility
		Programme		
Our staff and	Implement learning opportunities for staff including,	Access to Services	October 2010	Wendy Livings
Councillors	mandatory training workshops, e-based learning,			
understand their	secondment and mentoring opportunities.			
roles and objectives				
under the equality	Monitor evaluation and access to training by staff			
duties and wider	across all the equality groups.			
equality legislation.				
They receive training				
and are confident in				
their knowledge of				
the work of the				
Council.				
Staff are fully	Consider the need for an Access Officer to create a	Flexible Working/Staff	March 2011	Corinne Birch
supported in all	'single point of contact' to support and manage the	culture – Workforce		
areas of their	needs of all staff in an integrated way. Involve	Development Plan		
employment to	known disabled staff in this process.			
enable ease of				
access that meets				
individual				
requirements.				

Outcome	Action	Links to Improvement Programme	Timescale	Lead Responsibility
Staff feedback confirms a culture in the Council where everyone is treated with respect and dignity at work.	Revise our Bullying and Harassment policy and monitor their impact through our staff survey by equality profile and national data on bullying in the workplace for under-represented strands such as transgender staff. Consider provision of independent support for staff provided by a neighbouring authority under a reciprocal arrangement. Review and publicise our policy on domestic abuse.	Flexible Working/Staff culture – Workforce Development Plan	March 2012	Corinne Birch
The working environment is accessible for all staff and visitors.	Review the Access to Services policy to reflect the access to the working environment for staff and engage the Asset Management Group Consult with staff on proposed actions via the Staff Forum.	Access to Services	March 2011	Wendy Livings

Procurement of goods, facilities and services

Outcome	Action	Links to	Timescale	Lead
		Improvement		Responsibility
		Programme		
Through	Monitoring arrangements in place to assess whether	Efficiencies	March 2011	Chris Mills
procurement, we	contractors are compliant with our pre-qualification			
achieve a diverse	questionnaire which makes clear to our current and			
supply chain and	future contractors our equality requirements.			
our contracts are				
governed by a	Ensure all staff receive training on the procurement			
robust equality	process and its role within the equality agenda.			
framework.				
	Consult with internal and external stakeholders to			
	develop guidance that provides support and advice on			
	our tendering and selection processes removing			
	barriers to small- and medium-sized organisations and			
	publish guidance.			
	Follow the procurement toolkit for internal guidance.			
	All contracts to be monitored and any breach of			
	contract to be dealt with swiftly.			

Monitoring our Services

Outcome	Action	Links to Improvement Programme	Timescale	Lead Responsibility
The services provided by the Council and all policies/strategies are monitored and impact assessed.	Services undertake an Equality Impact Assessment which is reviewed annually. Each Equality Impact Assessment has an action plan which is reviewed monthly at the service management team meeting. All policies and strategies undergo an Equality Impact Assessment during the recommended review and refresh cycle.	Access to Services	March 2011	Wendy Livings
Access to Services	Review the Access to Services Strategy to ensure fairness for all. Review the availability of services through partner organisations and develop the Community Information Points.	Access to Services	March 2013	Wendy Livings

We publish and review our equality scheme

Outcome	Action	Links to Improvement Programme	Timescale	Lead Responsibility
We implement our equality scheme. We will monitor it and publish our findings annually.	Review and report monthly to the corporate management team. Produce and publish an annual progress report.	Access to Services	September 2010 May 2011	Wendy Livings
The Equality Act 2010 is enforced	Ensure that breaches of the Equality Act 2010 are appropriately acted upon. Enforcement actions to be taken are published.	Access to Services	September 2010	Wendy Livings